





Foreword

This Conservation Area Appraisal sets out some of the general legislation
relating to Conservation Areas. It traces the historic evolution of Scarisbrick
Park and describes the architectural and historic features, which make the area
special. It is to be read in conjunction with the Conservation Area Proposals
Document. The Conservation Area Proposals document also includes
recommendations, particularly about what the Council considers should be done
to increase planning control and amend the Conservation Area boundary. These
should be read in conjunction with one another.

The two documents have undergone a public consultation exercise and have been
amended to reflect public opinion where considered appropriate.

S. J. Byron, Executive Manager
(Planning and Development Services)
West Lancashire District Council
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
Lancashire
L39 2DF
September 2001









developments. New development will be allowed provided that it does not damage the historic
character of the landscape. Policy LN.2 in the West Lancashire Local Plan protects these features of
landscape history.

Scarisbrick Park is also designated as a Biological Heritage Site as it contributes to the biodiversity of
the County. Policy LN. 9 to protects its special ecological characteristics is included in the West
Lancashire Local Plan (Dec 1999).

The Natural Areas Supplementary Planning Guidance provides background for the conservation area
appraisal and proposal document which suggests strategies for the conservation of the area.

Set out in this document is a detailed assessment of what makes Scarisbrick Hall Conservation Area
special. Although important features are identified separately, it is the combination of the features
which justifies the designation of the conservation area rather than any one in particular.

The map below shows the current boundary of the conservation area.
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Thomas died in 1833 and was succeeded by his younger brother Charles Scarisbrick. This was only
after much dispute which ended up in the House of Lords where it was decided in his favour and gave
him an estimated income of £40,000 a year. The Park was completed by 1839 as shown by the tithe
map.

Charles was very resourceful and entrepreneurial, acquiring much land throughout South Lancashire.
He owned coal mines in nearby Wrightington and Shevington and prospered much from sale of land
which was eventually developed as the Victorian seaside town of Southport. He was also reputed to
the richest “commoner” in Lancashire, his income reaching about £60,000 in later life. Charles was a
very keen collector, buying antique pictures, furniture, books and armour. Charles was reputed to be a
recluse and never married but had a common in law wife, Mary Braithwaite and illegitimate children.
Their inheritance was secured through the sale of his collections

ANW Pugin was introduced to Charles Scarisbrick in 1836 and as a recent convert to Catholicism, he
was fascinated by medieval architecture and his designs reflect these strong religious and artistic
feelings. Interestingly Charles insisted that the new hall should follow on the same foundations of the
old hall, limiting Pugin, but revealing some interesting designs. The commission for Scarisbrick Hall
certainly offered Pugin his first real opportunity to put his ideas into practice and the design must also
have delighted Charles Scarisbrick.(County Museums Guide)

ANW Pugin died in 1852 and when Charles died in 1860 the estate was inherited by his sister, who
changed her name to Lady Ann Scarisbrick on her return to England from Paris in 1861. Lady Anne
commissioned Pugin’s son Edward Welby to redecorate and extend the hall and interestingly
whenever possible incorporate the monogram 'A.S.” E.W. Pugin’s design into the decoration of the
building was more elaborate than his father’s and the clock tower was removed and replaced by the
tower which exists today, taller and more flamboyant. In 1872 Anne Scarisbrick died and was
succeeded by her daughter Elizer Margaret, Marquise de Casteja. On her death, her husband
commissioned the building of St Elizabeth’s Church, designed by Pugin and Pugin in 1888 within the
grounds of the Park, on the site of the former Catholic Chapel, in her memory.

The Casteja family sold the Hall back to Sir Thomas Talbot Leyland Scarisbrick, a grandson of
Charles and when it passed to his son Sir Evererd Scarisbrick he sold it in 1946 as a training college.
In 1963 the college closed and a development company wanted to demolish the Hall and redevelop the
grounds for housing. Planning permission was thankfully refused and the Hall was again sold for use
as an independent school. At this time the internal fittings where under threat and the County
Council served a Building Preservation Order in 1963 to prevent their sale and removal. This was
upheld and in 1969 the County Council acquired the works of art in situ at Scarisbrick Hall. The land
ownership was divided up in 1964 and is now currently fragmented. Part of the estates woodland was
offered up for timber for up to two years and this is when much of the historic woodland plantations,
as shown in 1892 map were cleared.

The 1850 and 1892 maps show the chronological layers of development of Scarisbrick Hall Park
which reveal interesting patterns of the history of the site.

The garden was designed as a setting for the Hall and to enhance the views from it but has been

developed from a number of elements which have evolved over the years and these are described
below.
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primary school located within the grounds. The rest of the Park is open pasture land and used for
grazing of cattle and sheep.

Historically of course Scarisbrick Hall was a private residence for the Scarisbrick family and was used
as such, however the family allowed the grounds to be used for sports days and agricultural shows,
and once a year the tenants were invited to an open day to wander around the gardens and see the
orangery (Duggan, M 1996).









behind their layout, and management plans should be prepared to ensure their long term maintenance.
Long term plans are essential when considering replanting maintenance and felling schemes.

Trees and plants are important to the conservation area for other reasons, principally as defining
boundaries and routes and as attractive elements. They add colour, and change with the seasons
providing a setting for the important buildings in the Park, screening and framing views. They
provide a welcome contrast to the flat surrounding relatively treeless landscape. They contribute
significantly to the biodiversity of the area, providing shelter and shade for wildlife, they improve and
maintain air quality by acting as natural air filters, reduce noise pollution from the main roads
surrounding the park and perhaps most importantly provide visual enhancement acting as screening
between the built and open environments.

Hurlston Brook flows from the south through the Park past the edge of Spring Wood past the lake
(originally feeding the lake) around the rear of Old Wood. Here it is called Eas Brook and continues
to flow up to the north-west corner of the Park, Eas Brook formed the eastern edge of the moat which
was the original site of Scarisbrick Hall. There are other smaller natural springs and ornamental
ponds in Paddock Wood. These all add to the attractiveness of the natural areas in the Park and
contribute towards the biodiversity of the District.

Open spaces within the conservation area are also important areas. They provide valuable views
across the Park. The grassed area on the former Pheasantry was historically cleared for its use for
rearing pheasants and fits well with its new use as camping and outside activity areas for the Girl
Guides.
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St Elizabeth Parish Centre

St Elizabeth Parish Centre, Hall Lane is adjacent St. Elizabeth’s RC Church is built from brick and
has gothic style windows to reflect those in the Church and therefore has group value with the Church
as an important building within the conservation area.

Scarisbrick Hall Almshouses

Scarisbrick Hall Almshouses were built in 1884 of red brick and are located north of the Hall and Hall
Road on the edge of the conservation area boundary. They are important in an historical context with
the Scarisbrick Park Estate but have undergone many harmful alterations particularly with windows
and doors. An example of this can be seen under the section on Detracting Features.

Cruck framed cottages

23 and 25 Hall Road, 1 and 3 Bescar Brow and 40 Hillock Lane, which is just outside the
conservation area boundary, are all part of a good sporadic group of originally thatched cruck framed
cottages.
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MOVEMENT

Vehicular movement circulates the Park along the busy Southport Road around the western boundary,
and along Bescar Brow Lane and Hall Road around the north and eastern boundaries. The Leeds and
Liverpool Canal forms the southern boundary. Movement around the Park is clearly very different
since the ownership became fragmented and split into its component parts. Much vehicular activity is
generated from the school up the main drive, and less frequently with the Guide Association.
Farming transport activity is dependent on the type of farming and is seasonal.

The Park is relatively peaceful and quiet creating an attractive environment that gives the impression

of being far away from the built environment. Although since there are no public rights of way into
the Park movement is restricted to authorised access only.
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